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T-625 c. 1860 and earlier
Two Swan Inn
St. Michaels
private

From the outside, the Two Swan Inn appears to date from the middle years
of the nineteenth century with is front entrance framed by sidelights and a transom
and six-over-six sash windows. A shift in roof levels is not an uncommon feature
for the period either. However, during a recent renovation of the building in an
offort to convert the structure to a bed and breakfast inn, the framing of the
southern half turned out to be much older than the balance of the house. The
original structure, estimated to date to the late eighteenth or early nineteenth

century, was a shorter building originally. The interior surfaces of the frame were

coated with whitewash which suggests that they were exposed initially.

The history of the property, originally known as "Mill Point" has served an
important part in St. Michael's past dating to the earliest years of the town. The
first mention of "Mill Point" as a location is found in the land transactions that
were negotiated between John Thompson and James Wignal during the early 1780s.
In the 1784 deed, "Mill Point" and "Lot number one," which had not been sold by
James Braddock, were transferred to James Wignal, who in turn sold "Mill Point" in
the same year to a partnership of John Thompson and William Harrison. Shortly
after, Thompson and Harrisons sold one-half interest of "Mill Point" and "Lot
number one" to Perry Spencer, who is listed as being a ship builder in Talbot

County records. The other half interest was sold to Richard Spencer in 1791.

The point property remained in the hands of the Spencers until 1801, when
they sold it to Joseph Harrison for L300. The deed states, "...All that part of the
'"The Beech' (sic) distinguished on the plat of St. Michaels at 'Mill Point' and lot

number one as lately occupied by Richard Spencer. From 1801 to 1851 the "Mill
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Point" land remained in Harrison family hands, although the house on the property
was rented. The extensive mid nineteenth-century alterations to the house could
have been accomplished by a number of later owners of the property dating
between the 1850s and 1870s. In twentieth-century deeds the property is referred

to as "Riverview."
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1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic MILL POINT

and/or common TWO SWAN INN
2. Location

street & number End of Carpenter Street ____ not for publication
city, town St. Michaels ____vicinity of congressional district First
state Maryland county Talbot
- - -
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district —_ public -X_ occupied ____ agriculture —___ museum
—X_building(s) X private —_ unoccupied X __ commercial — park
—__ structure . both ____work in progress ____ educational —_ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment — religious
- object ____in process = _vyes: restricted ____ government scientific
— being considered ____yes: unrestricted industrial transportation
_xnot applicable _  po ___ military ___ other:

4- 0wner Of Property (give nerlmes",’ and ma:"Lling addfessés of all owners)

name
street & number ‘ - telephone no.:
city, town state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Talbot County Clerk of Court liber 38
street & number Talbot County Courthouse folio 3
city, town Easton state 21601

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

titie

date —federal __ state _ county ___ locai

PaiinaN

pository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description | Survey No.  7_g75

Condition _ Check one Check one

— excellent ——deteriorated ___ unaltered _X original site

_%X good ___ruins % altered ___moved date of move
— fair — unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Two Swan Inn stands on a property historically known as Mill Point
located at the east end of Carpenter Street bordering the St. Michaels harbor.
The two-story frame house faces east with the gable oriented on a north/south
axis.

Built in at least two principal stages, the two-story, two-part frame house
is supported by an in-filled brick pier foundation and covered with aluminum
siding. The medium pitched gable roofs are covered with asphalt shingles.
During the past few years the house has been converted into a bed and breakfast
inn. While the house was being renovated it was established that the southern
half of the front block was the oldest section, perhaps dating to the eighteenth
century, while the northern half was moved up to the site sometime during the
mid nineteenth century when the whole structure was reworked.

The east (main) facade is an asymmetrical elevation with an center six-
panel front door framed by three-light sidelights and a three-light transom. The
front door is sheltered by a gable roof portico supported by square posts. To
each side of the entrance are six-over-six sash windows flanked by louvered
shutters. The second floor is lighted by three unevenly spaced six-over-six sash
windows also flanked by louvered shutters. A difference in the roof level
between the second and third bay from the south indicates the shift in the two
different structures. The eave is marked by a boxed cornice with bed and crown
moldings. '

Rising through the south gable end is a brick chimney and to one side are
six-over-six sash windows. The gable ends are finished with slightly extended
eaves with short returns. The north gable end, on the other hand, is pierced by
pairs of six-over-six sash windows that light each floor, and a single sash window
illuminates the attic.

The west (rear) elevation of the main block is partially covered by two-
story and one-story shed roofed additions. :

The interior has been generally reworked on the first floor as a bed and
breakfast inn. The stair dates to the mid nineteenth-century with a heavily

turned newel post, turned balusters, and a molded handrail. A hall partition that

divided the south room from the hall was removed during the renovation. Also
during the renovation, the framing of the early house was exposed which revealed
that the former house had been shorter and the old floor level lower. Aside from
the stair, the main first floor room has been reworked with modern materials.



8. Significance Survey No. T-625

Period Areas of Significance-Check and justify belew
—prehistoric _ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
' 1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic — conservation — law —___science
“.1500-1599 ____ agriculture —__economics —literature — sculpture
—1600-1699 _ X architecture — education — military —_ social/
— 1700-1799 ____ art —__ engineering — music humanitarian
-3 1800-1899 ___ commerce ___ exploration/settlement ___ philosophy —_ theater
— 1900- — communications — industry — - politics/government __ transportation
— invention —_ other (specify)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: . A B X C D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _D E _F G
Level of Significance: _ national __ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a geﬂgral statement of history and
support. ' v

The history of "Mill Point" has served an important part in St. Michael's
past dating to the earliest formative years of the town. Although part of the
extant house dates evidently to the turn of the nineteenth century, the structure
was heavily reworked at two different times, first around 1850-1860 and then
more recently in an effort to convert the building to a bed and breakfast inn.
The present exterior appearance of the house is reflective of the mid nineteenth
century, while the interior is a mixture of nineteenth ,and twentieth century
tastes. The stair is one of the most significant interigff\' a"'cfng from the mid

7. nineteenth century. !

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

The first mention of "Mill Point" as a location is found in the land
transactions that were negotiated between John Thompson and James Wignal
during the early 1780s.(21/417) In the 1784 deed, "Mill Point" and "Lot number
one," which had not been sold by James Braddock, were transferred to James
Wignal, who in turn sold "Mill Point" in the same year to a partnership of John
Thompson and William Harrison.(21/419) Shortly after, Thompson and Harrison
sold one-half interest of "Mill Point" and "Lot number one" to Perry Spencer,
who is listed as being a ship builder in Talbot county records.(22/74) The other
half interest in "Mill Point" was sold to Richard Spencer in 1791.(24/345)

The point property remained in the hands of the Spencers until 1801, when
they sold it to Joseph Harrison for L300. The deed states, "...All that part of
'The Beech' (sic) distinguished on the plat of St. Michaels at 'Mill Point' and lot
number one as lately occupied by Richard Spencer..."(29/237) From 1801 to 1851
the "Mill Point" land remained in Harrison family hands, although the house on
the property was evidently rented. The extensive mid ninteenth-century
alterations to the house could have been accomplished by a number of various
owners of the property dating between the 1850s and 1870s. In twentieth-
century deeds the property is referred to as "Riverview."(236/45)




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No, T-625

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangie name Quadrangle scale

UTM References Jo NOT complete UTM references -
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Verbal boundary descrlptlon and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Paul B. Touart Architectural Historian

organization Private Consultant date 3/8/88
street&number P. O. Box 5 telephone  (301) 651-1094
city or town Westover state MD 21871

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any 1nfr1ngement of

individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746



MILL POINT - TWO SWAN INN T-625

YEAR: 1953 VOL: 38 PAGE: 3

FROM: Ruth R. Startt PRICE:

TO: Kathleen S. Turner and Charles R. Turner

NOTES Called "Riverview'". Begins at the E corner of Lot Number 1 on Mill Street;
run NW with #1 about 200 feet to Carpenter Street; with the street to the river;
with the river, E and S to the N side of Mill Street; with the street to the
beginnin. Part of a title clearance.

Conveyed to Startt by the Turners, 1953, 308/1 and to Kathleen S. Turner by Wm.
Reddie 1946, 268/542.

YEAR: 1946 VOL: 268 PAGE: 542

FROM: William Reddie PRICE:

TO: Kathleen S. Turner

NOTES Same description.

To Reddie by the Turners 1946, 268/543 (Title Clearance)
To the Turners by Rieman 1937, 238/382.

YEAR: 1937 VOL: 238 PAGE: 542

FROM: Ida C. Rieman, divorced PRICE:

TO: Charles R. Turner and Kathleen S. Turmner

NOTES Same description.

Part of the land conveyed to Ida C. Rieman by Emma W. Rieman Hall and Dale
Dorsey Hall 1936, 236/45.

1938, 238/382 is a mortgage to County Trust Co. for $2000

YEAR: 1936 VOL: 236 PAGE: 45

FROM: Emma W. Rieman Hall PRICE:

TO: Ida C. Rieman

NOTES The deed is for two parcels. This is Parcel "A" -"Riverview". Same
description. Parcel "B" is lot adjacent to this, fronting on Carpenter Street
on West.

Parcel "A" conveyed to Ida C. Rieman by W. D. J. Morris 1917, 175/60. Ida C.
Rieman conveyed to Emma W. Rieman (now Hall) 229/312.

YEAR: 1917 VOL: 175 PAGE: 60

FROM: W. D. J. Morris and Laura A. Morris PRICE: $2000
TO: Ida C. Rieman

NOTES Same description.

Conveyed to W. D. J. Morris by Joseph E. Walter, trustee of Richard E. Ford
1914, 169/11.




'MILL POINT T-625 PAGE TWO

YEAR: 1914 VOL: 169 PAGE: 11

FROM: Joseph R. Walter, trustee PRICE: $1220

TO: W. D. J. Morris

NOTES Property sold by authority of Circuit Court decree of 22 July 1913.
Orilla E. Walter et al comp. vs Wm. T. Ford et al def. Morris was high bidder.
Conveyed to Richard E. Ford by Samuel H. Aldridge, jr. 1872, 78/186.

YEAR: 1872 VOL: 78 PAGE: 186

FROM: Samuel H. Aldridge, jr. and Emma S. Aldridge ©PRICE: $900 ?

TO: .Richard E. Ford

NOTES Same description.

Conveyed to Samuel H. Aldridge, jr. by J. Laurence Colston 1869, 75/512.

YEAR: 1869 VOL: 75 PAGE: 512

FROM: J. Laurence Colston (Dorchester County) PRICE: $700
TO: Samuel H. Aldridge, Jr.

NOTES Same description.

Conveyed to Colston by Joshua M. Fairbank, Jr. 1867, 74/146.

YEAR: 1867 VOL: 74 PAGE: 146

FROM: Joshua M. Fairbank, Jr. and Josephine L. Fairbank PRICE: $700
TO: Laura J. Colston

NOTES Same description.

To Fairbank by Dodson 1862, 70/73.

YEAR: 1862 VOL: 70 PAGE: 73

FROM: Robert A. Dodson PRICE: $500
TO: Joshua M. Fairbank, Jr.

NOTES Same description.

To Dodson by Sewell 1862, 69/470.

YEAR: 1862 VOL: 69 PAGE: 470

FROM: James T. Sewell PRICE: $400

TO: Robert A. Dodson

NOTES Same description.

To Sewell by Nicholas Orem 1858, 68/250.




MILL POINT T-625 PAGE THREE

YEAR: 1858 VOL:; 68 PAGE: 250

FROM: Nicholas Orem and Sarah Orem PRICE: $550

TO: James T. Sewell

NOTES Same description.

Conveyed to Nicholas Orem by Samuel H. Wrightson 1851, 63/433.

YEAR: 1851 VOL: 63 PAGE: 433

FROM: Samuel H. Wrightson and Hester E. Wrightson PRICE: $100

TO: Nicholas Orem

NOTES Late residence of Thomas Summers, decd., occupied by his widow and children
on the waters of the Miles River. Same description follows.

No derivation given. Another one of Samuel H. Wrightson's properties which he
apparemtly inherited through his descent from the Harrisons.

There is a period of fifty years between this deed and the next earlier which
hds been found. Since the deed is to Joseph Harrison ~ and Samuel Harrison
Wrightson is in the Harrison line ~ it is probable that the property remained in
the Harrison family for that length of time.

YEAR: 1801 VOL: 29 PAGE: 237

FROM: Philemon Spencer and Richard Spencer PRICE: p300

TO: Joseph Harrison

NOTES "All that part of "The Beech" (sic) distinguished on the plat of St.
Michaels as "Mill Point" and lot number One as lately occupied by Richard
Spencer: one moiety or half part was conveyed by John Thompson and William
Harrison to Richard Spencer in 1791 (such part of lot number One only excepted
as was conveyed by Perry and Richard Spencer to Thomas Harrison" in 1794.

(See the chain-of ~title for T-596 Millard.)

YEAR: 1791 VOL: 24 PAGE: 345

FROM: William Harrison and John Thompson PRICE: p40

TO: Richard Spencer

NOTES Part of "The Beach". That "other" moiety or half-part of Mill Point

not heretofore sold to Perry Spencer in 1784. Apparently the Spencers intended
to use '"Mill Point" for boat-building ; however, they sold off lot One to
House Carpenter Thomas Harrison in 1795 and the remainder to Joseph Harrison
in 1801. Original records of a boatyard (or even a mill) on '"Mill Point" have
not been found.

YEAR: 1784 VOL: 22 PAGE: 74

FROM: William Harrison and John Thompson PRICE: p50 sp

TO: Perry Spencer

NOTES One moiety or half-part of Mill Point. Lot number one was included. Fifty
pounds, specie, would appear to be a high price although the land occupies a
prominent site on the harbor. Perry Spencer called himself a "Shipwright" or
"Ship~builder". He later operated a boatyard on Broad Creek at "Beverley".
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MILL POINT T-625 PAGE FOUR

YEAR: 1784*% VOL: 22 PAGE: 54

FROM: William Harrison PRICE:

TO: John Thompson

NOTES The deed has a "made" date of 1782. This must be an error because James
Wignal did not arrive in Talbot County until May of 1784. The deed states that
James Wignal sold William Harrison and John Thompson on 4 May 1784, "all that
tract called Mill Point adjoining lot number 2. In comnsideration of John Thomp-
son joining in a deed of one moiety of Mill Point to Perry Spencer, William
Harrison gives up his rights to Mill Point.

The above does not make too much sense in view of both Thompson and Harrison
being the grantors to Perry Spencer on 1784, 22/74!

YEAR: 1784 VOL: 21 PAGE: 419

FROM: James Wignal PRICE: p68 sp

TO0: John Thompson and William Harrison

NOTES The sale is for '"Mill Point" adjoining Lot number 2.

References in deeds made between 1782 and 1801 to the "plat of St.Michaels"
suggest that a copy of Braddock's original plat was in existence —- although
it was never recorded. The "Survey of St. Michaels" on which the Town was
erected was not made until 1804-1806.

YEAR: 1784 VOL: 21 PAGE: 417

FROM: John Thompson PRICE: p600 sp

TO: James Wignal

NOTES In this deed John Thompson "sells" James Wignal all of Braddock's unsold
land which he, Thompson, had received under the terms of James Braddock's will.
Mill Point and Lot number One had not been sold by Braddock and therefore passed
from Thompson to Wignal in this transaction.

YEAR: 1782 VOL: JB3 PAGE: 144 (WILL)

FROM: WILL OF JAMES BRADDOCK PRICE:

TO:

NOTES In the name of God Amen - I James Braddock give and bequeath my soul to
God from whence it came. I give and bequeath Thomas Wrightson all the blacks-
smith tools. I give and bequeath unto John Thompson all the real and personable
estate of what nature and kind whatever with paying all my just debts.

Witness present: Will Hambleton; Rebecca Start; Will Davis (signed next day)
Dated May 3, 1782. Probate: 24 Sept 1782.




MILL POINT T-625 PAGE FIVE

YEAR: 1778 VOL: 21 PAGE: 66

FROM: Thomas Kemp and Robert Richardson PRICE: pl550 cm

TO: James Braddock

NOTES The "auction" of the estate of Philip Wetheral, deceased. Included parts
of The Beach, Bentley Hay, and Jane's Progress. 127 acres.

YEAR: 1772 VOL: 20 PAGE: 236

FROM: James Hewes, Blacksmith PRICE: p6l 16s 8d

TO: Philipp Wetheral, Merchant

NOTES Part of Jane's Progress and The Beach. The metes and bounds are very good
and easily discernable as the area between the Mill Street lots and Chestnut
Street and from Talbot Street to the water. 35 acres.

No record of James Hewes' purchase of Jane's Progress or The Beach was found.
He apparently inherited it from his father, John Hewes who died in 1754. James
Hughes died in 1784.

YEAR: 1737 VOL: 14 PAGE: 313

FROM: David Hewes PRICE:

TO: John Hewes (son)

NOTES David Hewes leaves everything - "moveable and immoveable, quick and dead",
etc. - to his son John.

YEAR: 1722 VOL: 13 PAGE: 81

FROM: Thomas and Susannah Ashcroft PRICE:

TO: David Hewes

NOTES "all that part of Davenport and The Beach that can be found on the South
side of the creek next adjoining Thomas Ashcroft's 0ld Plantation that runs to
the bridge that is in the main road". 12 acres

YEAR: 1704 VOL: 9 PAGE: 262

FROM: Edward Elliott PRICE:

TO: William Hopkins and wife Susannah (nee Elliott)

NOTES Elliott leaves his entire dwelling plantation of 476 acres to Hopkins and
Susannah - his son-in-law and daughter. This included all of Ddvenport and The
Beach which had been combined into "Elliott's Lot" in 1695.

On the death of William Hopkins, Susannah married Thomas Ashcroft bringing him
ownership of the property.




MILL POINT T-625 PAGE SIX

YEAR: 1677 VOL: 3 PAGE: 98
FROM: Humphrey Davenport PRICE:
TO: Edward Elliott

NOTES "The Beach" - 50 acres.

The following deeds trace the entire 50 acres of "The Beach" back to the Patent:
1675, 1/332 William Vincent to Humphrey Davenport

1672, 2/55 Matthias Petersen to William Vincent
1669, 1/83 William Hambleton to Matthias Petersen
1668, 1/72 John Hollingsworth to William Hambleton

1665, 8/118 (Patents) to John Hollingsworth, The Beach - 50 acres.
A paralellogram running Southeast from the vicinity of

Deepwater Creek one mile long by 412 1/2 feet wide. The

southern end of this tract is identified in later deeds

as Mill Point and the lots along the East side of Water

Street in St. Michaels.
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ST MICHAELS DIST. TarLsoT Co.

— < \&‘
R
ICHAEL'S BUSINESS BEFERENCES,

DODSON, Dealerin Drugs, Medicines, Chem-
s, Fine Toilet Soap. Fancy Hair and Tooth
ishes, Perfumery and Fancy ‘Toilet Articles,
1sses, Shonlder-Braces, Grass and Garden Seeds.
- Wines and Lignors for Medicinal pmgna,
nts, Oils, Yarnishes and Dye Stuffs, Letter Paper,
as, Ink, Eavelopes, Glass, Putty, Carbon oil,
mps, Chimneys, &c. Physicians’ Prescriptions care-

y Comsonn ed.
HADDAWAY, Insurance Agent and Con-

vaneer,

¥ W. DBAN, Colledtor of Claims, Real Estste
-ent and Conveyancer.

28 DYOTT, ter, Contractor and Builder,

.op at St. Michsel's.

ED H}L“LBTON, Carpenter and Buil-
r. Sk St Michaels.

a8 1 IN, Real Estate Agent and Cale

storof o s
SPARKS, Justice of the Peace and Collector,
SMITHMAN, Boot and Shoemaker. First

1ss work done on short notice. Repairing
umgny and neatly done.

¥ 8. HAMBLBTON, etor of ** Ham-
ston’s Mechanical Shop.”’ B ithing, Wheel-
rightingd, and all work a“seﬂzining thereto. In-

icate Machinery carcfully repaired, Farming

aplements on hand, and made to order st ahort
tice. Carriage Repuiring, Trimming and Painting
Specially.

WILLIAM CAULK, Physician and Smﬁn'
JAMES SBTH, Physician and Surgeon, ce
nd Residence near St. Michael's.

LIAM 8, HARRISON, Blacksmith and
Vagon Maker, Repairing promptly and neatly
one, Shopin B Creek Neck,

3. NBAVITT & CO., Desl;en u&DryGood.t.
‘votions, Hats, Boots, c. Store in
3road Creek Necci.% -

/N T. HARRINGTON, Proprictor of « Wil.
ams House,” Newly furnished and fitted, Table
:arefully catered for. All the luxuries of the sea-
sop.  Ample Stable Accommodations, Charges
moderate,

NIBL J. KILMAN, Carriage Maker and Dealer
:n all kinds of Wi ;

ORGE W. COLLINS, Tinner. Worker in Tin,
Sheet Irom, &c. Also Dealer in Stoves and Tin,
and Sheet Iron ware of every description.

2. BLADES, nter, Contractor, and Bnilder.
Persons having work in this line will do well to see
him before contracting,

3EPH HERGERSHEIMER, Ship Builder.
Repairing of all kinds}mmpﬂy and neatly done.
IVER FAIRBANK, Boot and Shoemaker. Is
skilful in his Yrofesion. Those wanting first class
work done will do well to patrouize him.

\RRISON & RICHARDSON, Camriage Ma-
kers. All work warranted. Repairing promptly
and neatly done.

J. HOLLAND, Butcher and Dealer in Fresh
Meats of all kinds, Shop on Talbot Street.

.PT, C. R. LEONARD, Freighter of Grain of all
kinds to any point.

1OMAP=LADES, Of E. Dealer in Dry Goods,
1oti¢ ceries, Cigars, cco, &¢.

aaM HARRISON, Deler in Grocerles,
Confectioneries &o. »

8. KILMON, Carriage Maker and Dealer in Car-
riages, Wagons, &c. Repairing promptly and neatly

done.
A. DODSONPhysician and Sucgeon.
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Two Swan Inn

St. Michaels, Talbot County, Maryland
East elevation

1/88 Paul Touart photographer
Negative/MD Historical Trust



